

Betting (ACTTAB Limited) Act 1964 No 14

Republication No 6

Republication date: 17 June 2002

Last amendment made by Act 2001 No 49

Amendments incorporated to 12 September 2001

Authorised by the ACT Parliamentary Counsel

About this republication

The republished law

This is a republication of the *Betting (ACTTAB Limited) Act 1964* as in force on 17 June 2002. It includes any amendment, repeal or expiry affecting the republished law to 12 September 2001 and any amendment made under the *Legislation Act 2001*, part 11.3 (Editorial changes).

The legislation history and amendment history of the republished law are set out in endnotes 3 and 4.

Kinds of republications

The Parliamentary Counsel's Office prepares 2 kinds of republications of ACT laws (see the ACT legislation register at www.legislation.act.gov.au):

- authorised republications to which the *Legislation Act 2001* applies
- unauthorised republications.

The status of this republication appears on the bottom of each page.

Editorial changes

The Legislation Act 2001, part 11.3 authorises the Parliamentary Counsel to make editorial amendments and other changes of a formal nature when preparing a law for republication. Editorial changes do not change the effect of the law, but have effect as if they had been made by an Act commencing on the republication date (see Legislation Act 2001, s 115 and s 117). The changes are made if the Parliamentary Counsel considers they are desirable to bring the law into line, or more closely into line, with current legislative drafting practice.

This republication includes amendments made under part 11.3 (see endnote 1).

Uncommenced provisions and amendments

If a provision of the republished law has not commenced or is affected by an uncommenced amendment, the symbol $\boxed{\textbf{U}}$ appears immediately before the provision heading. The text of the uncommenced provision or amendment appears only in the last endnote.

Modifications

If a provision of the republished law is affected by a current modification, the symbol **M** appears immediately before the provision heading. The text of the modifying provision appears in the endnotes. For the legal status of modifications, see *Legislation Act 2001*, section 95.

Penalties

The value of a penalty unit for an offence against this republished law at the republication date is—

- (a) if the person charged is an individual—\$100; or
- (b) if the person charged is a corporation—\$500.



Australian Capital Territory

Betting (ACTTAB Limited) Act 1964

Contents

		Page
Part 1	Preliminary	
1	Name of Act	2
3	Definitions for Act	2
Part 2	Exclusive licence	
4	Grant of licence	4
5	Commencement and duration	4
6	Licence to be exclusive	4
7	Transfer of licence	4
Part 3	Finance	
32	Payments to Territory	5
34	Payments by Minister to fund	5

Contents

36	Declared race clubs	Page 6
Part 4	Racing development fund	
40	Meaning of prescribed payment in pt 4	7
41	Racing development fund	7
42	Payments to fund	7
43	Application of fund money	8
44	Purposes of prescribed payments	8
45	Consultation with company and declared race clubs	10
46	Terms applicable to prescribed payments	10
47	Repayment of prescribed payments	10
Part 5	Betting	
51	Permitted betting activities	12
52	Bets on credit	13
53	Betting by children	13
54	Availability of Act etc. for inspection	13
Part 6	Miscellaneous	
55	Rules of betting	15
56	Regulation-making power	15
Endnote	s	
1	About the endnotes	16
2	Abbreviation key	16
3	Legislation history	17
4	Amendment history	21
5	Earlier republications	36
6	Renumbered provisions	37

Amendments incorporated to 12 September 2001



Betting (ACTTAB Limited) Act 1964

An Act relating to the operations of ACTTAB Limited

Part 1 Preliminary

1 Name of Act

This Act is the Betting (ACTTAB Limited) Act 1964.

3 Definitions for Act

In this Act:

Note A definition applies except so far as the contrary intention appears (see *Legislation Act 2001*, s 155).

bet means any stake, pledge or wager in money between a backer and the company on any event or contingency relating to—

- (a) a race; or
- (b) a sporting event; or
- (c) a sports bookmaking event.

betting includes the negotiation, acceptance and distribution of moneys in connection with bets and the settling of bets.

Bookmakers Act means the Bookmakers Act 1985.

club means a club, association, society or other body of people, whether incorporated or not.

company means ACTTAB Limited.

declared race club means a race club declared to be a declared race club under section 36.

fund means the fund referred to in section 41.

licence means a licence granted under section 4 (1).

race means a horse race, greyhound race or harness race, and includes, in relation to a bet, with 1 stake, on the results of 2 or more races, all of the races in relation to which the bet is made.

race club means a club formed or carried on for the purpose of conducting or controlling races in the ACT.

racecourse means land, whether within or outside the ACT, that is used for races and to which admission is obtainable by payment of money, by ticket or otherwise.

rules of betting means the rules made under section 55, as in force from time to time.

rules for sports bookmaking—see the *Race and Sports Bookmaking Act 2001*, dictionary.

sporting event means an event other than a race or a sports bookmaking event.

sports bookmaking—see the *Race and Sports Bookmaking Act* 2001, dictionary.

sports bookmaking event—see the *Race and Sports Bookmaking Act 2001*, dictionary.

totalisator betting means betting on a totalisator operated by the company in relation to an event (whether conducted in the ACT or elsewhere) that is—

- (a) a race; or
- (b) a sporting event; or
- (c) a sports bookmaking event.

Part 2 Exclusive licence

4 Grant of licence

- (1) Subject to subsection (2), the Minister shall grant to the company in writing a licence to conduct or provide totalisator betting services.
- (2) The Minister shall not grant a licence unless a deed of agreement between the Minister and the company has come into operation being a deed expressed to be made for this section.

5 Commencement and duration

Subject to section 4 (2), a licence takes effect on the day referred to in the *Betting (Corporatisation) (Consequential Provisions) Act* 1996, section 2 (2) and continues in operation for 20 years.

6 Licence to be exclusive

This Act does not authorise the operation at the same time of more than 1 licence.

7 Transfer of licence

A licence is not transferable.

Part 3 Finance

32 Payments to Territory

- (1) The company shall, as soon as practicable after the first day of each month, pay to the Territory the percentage determined under subsection (3) of the amount of bets accepted by the company during the previous month.
- (2) The company shall, as soon as practicable after the end of a financial year, pay to the Territory the percentage determined under subsection (3) of the amount of bets accepted by the company during that financial year.
- (3) The Minister may, in writing, determine a percentage for subsection (1) or (2).
- (4) A determination is a disallowable instrument.

Note A disallowable instrument must be notified, and presented to the Legislative Assembly, under the Legislation Act 2001.

(5) In this section:

bet does not include a bet relating to a sporting event or a sports bookmaking event.

34 Payments by Minister to fund

- (1) The Minister shall, as soon as practicable after receipt of the amount paid to the Territory under section 32 (1), pay that amount to the fund.
- (2) The Minister shall, as soon as practicable after receipt of the amount paid to the Territory under section 32 (2), pay that amount to the fund.

36 Declared race clubs

- (1) The Minister may, in writing, declare a race club, being a body corporate incorporated under a law in force in the ACT, to be a declared race club.
- (2) A declaration is a disallowable instrument.

Note A disallowable instrument must be notified, and presented to the Legislative Assembly, under the Legislation Act 2001.

Part 4 Racing development fund

40 Meaning of prescribed payment in pt 4

In this part:

prescribed payment means a payment under section 43 for a purpose referred to in section 44.

41 Racing development fund

- (1) The Treasurer shall, in writing, specify an account under the *Financial Management Act 1996* to be the racing development fund.
- (2) The reference in subsection (1) to an account includes a reference to an account under that Act that, for the time being, replaces that account or an earlier replacement of that account.
- (3) In this section:

Treasurer means the Minister administering the *Financial Management Act 1996*, and includes a Minister for the time being acting on behalf of that Minister.

42 Payments to fund

There shall be paid to the credit of the fund—

- (a) amounts payable by the Minister under section 34; and
- (b) interest received on, and repayments of, loans made out of the fund; and
- (c) any amounts received by the Minister under section 47; and
- (d) interest received in relation to money held in the fund; and
- (e) income derived from the investment of money of the fund; and
- (f) any other amounts that may be lawfully paid into the fund.

43 Application of fund money

(1) In this section:

person or body does not include the National Exhibition Centre Trust.

- (2) Money of the fund may be applied in making a payment under the authority of this subsection—
 - (a) to a declared race club in relation to a particular month of the amount (if any) approved by the Minister in writing in relation to that club for that month; or
 - (b) to a declared race club or to any other person or body, from time to time, for or in connection with any of the purposes referred to in section 44.
- (3) A payment referred to in subsection (2) (a) shall be made before the end of the last day of the month after the month to which the payment relates.

44 Purposes of prescribed payments

- (1) The purposes for or in connection with which the payments referred to in section 43 (2) (b) may be made are—
 - (a) the construction of a racecourse, training track or facilities ancillary to a racecourse or training track; and
 - (b) effecting improvements on a racecourse or to a training track or facilities ancillary to a racecourse or training track; and
 - (c) to discharge, wholly or in part, a liability incurred by the person or body in relation to—
 - (i) the construction of a racecourse, training track or facilities ancillary to a racecourse or training track; or
 - (ii) improvements effected on a racecourse or to a training track or facilities ancillary to a racecourse or training track; and

- (d) if the body to which the payment is made is a declared race club—to discharge, wholly or in part, a liability incurred by or on behalf of the declared race club in connection with a racecourse, being a racecourse that has ceased to be a licensed racecourse for the *Racing Act 1999*; and
- (e) if the person to whom the payment is made is a person engaged in preparing horses or greyhounds for racing in races to be conducted or controlled by a declared race club—to enable or assist the person to transfer the training activities of the person, or facilities used in that preparation, to premises at or in the vicinity of a racecourse or training track; and
- (f) the construction or alteration of premises at a racecourse to facilitate the conduct of totalisator betting services; and
- (g) any other purpose approved by the Minister in writing, whether or not concerned with infrastructure, that is related to the promotion, advancement, conduct or administration of racing.
- (2) A prescribed payment for a purpose referred to in subsection (1) (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) or (f) shall not be made unless the racecourse, training track or facilities to which the payment relates is or are, or will when constructed be, situated in the ACT.
- (3) A payment shall not be made for a purpose referred to in subsection (1) (a), (b) or (c) unless the racecourse, training track or facilities to which the payment relates is or are, or will when constructed be, under the management or control of the National Exhibition Centre Trust or a declared race club or clubs.
- (4) A payment shall not be made for the purpose referred to in subsection (1) (e) unless the racecourse or training track to or in the vicinity of which the training activities or facilities to which the payment relates are being transferred is a racecourse or training track that is under the management or control of the National Exhibition Centre Trust or a declared race club or clubs.

- (5) A prescribed payment may be made in connection with a training track or facilities ancillary to a training track whether the training track is or the facilities are situated on a racecourse or elsewhere.
- (6) In this section:

training track means an area of land used or intended to be used for the purpose of preparing horses or greyhounds for racing in races to be conducted or controlled by a race club.

45 Consultation with company and declared race clubs

The Minister shall from time to time consult with the company and declared race clubs in relation to the application of the money of the fund for any of the purposes referred to in section 44.

46 Terms applicable to prescribed payments

- (1) The Minister may make a prescribed payment on the terms and conditions that, in the opinion of the Minister, are reasonably necessary to promote the purposes of the fund.
- (2) If a prescribed payment is made by way of a grant, the Minister may, in writing, specify how, and the time within which, the amount of the payment, or a part of that amount, is to be expended.
- (3) If a prescribed payment is made by way of a loan, interest is payable in relation to the payment at the rate the Minister determines.

47 Repayment of prescribed payments

If—

- (a) a prescribed payment is made by way of a grant; and
- (b) the amount of the payment or a part of that amount is not expended by the person to whom or the body to which the payment was made—
 - (i) for the purpose for which the payment was made; or
 - (ii) how or within the time (if any) specified in an instrument under section 46 (2) in relation to that payment;

an amount equal to the amount of the payment or that part of the amount of the payment, as the case requires, is payable by that person or body to the Minister for the purpose of the fund.

Part 5 Betting

51 Permitted betting activities

(1) In this section:

fixed price bet means a bet on a sports bookmaking event that is made with the company otherwise than on a totalisator.

sports bookmaker—see the *Race and Sports Bookmaking Act 2001*, dictionary.

- (2) A person may place with the company a bet referred to in subsection (3) or (4) and a person dealing with the company, or an employee or agent of the company, in good faith is entitled to assume—
 - (a) for a totalisator bet accepted by the company—that the bet complies with the rules of betting and this Act; or
 - (b) for a fixed price bet accepted by the company as agent of a sports bookmaker—that the bet complies with the terms of the agreement between the company and the bookmaker.
- (3) The company may accept a totalisator bet if the bet is made in accordance with the rules of betting and this Act.
- (4) Subject to the terms of any agreement between the company and a sports bookmaker, the company, as agent of the bookmaker, may accept fixed price bets on a sports bookmaking event in relation to which the bookmaker is carrying on business.
- (5) An agreement referred to in subsection (4) shall be in accordance with the rules for sports betting and this Act.
- (6) The company and its employees or agents shall only accept bets at offices or agencies of the company.

Maximum penalty: 50 penalty units, imprisonment for 6 months or both.

- (7) The company may conduct its activities relating to the acceptance of bets by telephone if the person intending to place the bet authorises payment of the amount of the bet from an account that—
 - (a) was established with the company before the beginning of the race, sporting event or the sports bookmaking event in relation to which the bet is to be placed; and
 - (b) contains sufficient money, at the time of making the bet, to pay the amount of the bet.
- (8) A contract that arises from the acceptance of a bet by or on behalf of the company from a person outside the ACT shall be taken to have been entered into in the ACT.

52 Bets on credit

The company shall not, without reasonable excuse, provide credit to a person for the purpose of providing funds for betting.

Maximum penalty: 250 penalty units.

53 Betting by children

(1) A person who is under 18 years old shall not make a bet with the company.

Maximum penalty: 5 penalty units.

(2) A person who has the management or control of, or is employed at, an office or agency of the company shall not accept a bet from or issue a ticket or acknowledgment to a person in relation to a bet if that person is apparently under 18 years old or if he or she has reason to believe that the person is under 18 years old.

Maximum penalty: 10 penalty units.

54 Availability of Act etc for inspection

(1) A person who has the management or control of an office or agency of the company shall not, without reasonable excuse, fail to ensure that a notice, stating that a copy of—

- (a) the rules of betting; and
- (b) the rules of sports betting; and
- (c) this Act;

are available for inspection at the office or agency, is exhibited in a part of that office or agency that is conspicuous and to which members of the public have access.

Maximum penalty: 5 penalty units.

(2) A person who has the management or control of an office or agency of the company shall not, without reasonable excuse, fail to ensure that copies of the rules of betting, the rules for sports bookmaking and of this Act are available for inspection on the premises of the office or agency at any time when that office or agency is open for business.

Maximum penalty: 5 penalty units.

Part 6 Miscellaneous

55 Rules of betting

- (1) The company may, from time to time, make rules providing for the terms on which totalisator bets are accepted by the company.
- (2) Rules are a disallowable instrument.

Note A disallowable instrument must be notified, and presented to the Legislative Assembly, under the Legislation Act 2001.

56 Regulation-making power

The Executive may make regulations for this Act.

Note Regulations must be notified, and presented to the Legislative Assembly, under the *Legislation Act 2001*.

Endnotes

1 About the endnotes

Amending and modifying laws are annotated in the legislation history and the amendment history. Current modifications are not included in the republished law but are set out in the endnotes.

Not all editorial amendments made under the *Legislation Act 2001*, part 11.3 are annotated in the amendment history. Full details of any amendments can be obtained from the Parliamentary Counsel's Office.

Uncommenced amending laws and expiries are listed in the legislation history and the amendment history. These details are underlined. Uncommenced provisions and amendments are not included in the republished law but are set out in the last endnote.

If all the provisions of the law have been renumbered, a table of renumbered provisions gives details of previous and current numbering.

The endnotes also include a table of earlier republications.

If the republished law includes penalties, current information about penalty unit values appears on the republication inside front cover.

2 Abbreviation key

am = amended amdt = amendment ch = chapter cl = clause def = definition dict = dictionary

disallowed = disallowed by the Legislative

Assembly div = division

exp = expires/expired
Gaz = Gazette
hdg = heading
ins = inserted/added
LA = Legislation Act 2001
LR = legislation register

LRA = Legislation (Republication) Act 1996

mod = modified / modification

No = number num = numbered o = order

om = omitted/repealed

ord = ordinance orig = original p = page par = paragraph pres = present prev = previous (prev...) = previously prov = provision pt = part

r = rule/subrule reg = regulation/subregulation

renum = renumbered reloc = relocated R[X] = Republication No s = section/subsection sch = schedule

sch = schedule sdiv = subdivision sub = substituted SL = Subordinate Law

<u>underlining</u> = whole or part not commenced

or to be expired

3 Legislation history

This Act was originally a Commonwealth ordinance—the *Betting (Off-course Totalizator Agency) Ordinance 1964* No 14 (Cwlth).

The Act was renamed as the *Betting (Totalizator Agency) Ordinance 1964* by the *Betting (Totalizator Agency) Ordinance 1969* (see s 3).

The Australian Capital Territory (Self-Government) Act 1988 (Cwlth), s 34 (4) converted most former Commonwealth ordinances in force in the ACT into ACT enactments. This allowed the ACT Legislative Assembly to amend and repeal the laws. This Act was converted into an ACT enactment on 11 May 1989 (self-government day).

As with most ordinances in force in the ACT, the name was changed from *Ordinance* to *Act* by the *Self-Government (Citation of Laws) Act 1989* No 21, s 5 on 11 May 1989 (self-government day).

The Act was later renamed as the *Betting (ACTTAB Limited) Act 1964* by the *Betting (Corporatisation) (Consequential Amendments) Act 1996* (see sch 1).

Before 11 May 1989, ordinances commenced on their notification day unless otherwise stated (see *Seat of Government (Administration) Act 1910* (Cwlth), s 12).

After 11 May 1989 and before 10 November 1999, Acts commenced on their notification day unless otherwise stated (see *Australian Capital Territory (Self-Government) Act 1988* (Cwlth) s 25).

Legislation before becoming Territory enactment

Betting (ACTTAB Limited) Act 1964 No 14

notified 28 August 1964 commenced 1 September 1964 (s 2)

as amended by

Ordinances Revision (Decimal Currency) Ordinance 1966 No 19 sch 1 notified 23 December 1966 commenced 23 December 1966

Betting (Off-course Totalizator Agency) Ordinance 1968 No 13 notified 25 July 1968 commenced 25 July 1968

Betting (Totalizator Agency) Ordinance 1969 No 24

notified 25 September 1969 commenced 1 October 1969 (s 2)

Betting (Totalizator Agency) Ordinance 1972 No 13

notified 13 April 1972 commenced 13 April 1972

Betting (Totalizator Agency) Ordinance 1973 No 35

notified 27 August 1973 s 1, s 2, s 5 commenced 27 August 1973 (s 2 (1)) remainder commenced 1 September 1973 (s 2 (2))

Ordinances Revision (Age of Majority) Ordinance 1974 No 47 sch 1

notified 24 October 1974 commenced 1 November 1974 (s 2)

Betting (Totalizator Agency) (Amendment) Ordinance 1976 No 66

notified 13 December 1976 commenced 13 December 1976

Ordinances Revision Ordinance 1977 No 65 sch 2

notified 22 December 1977 commenced 22 December 1977

Betting (Totalizator Agency) (Amendment) Ordinance 1978 No 30

notified 29 September 1978 commenced 29 September 1978

Ordinances Revision Ordinance 1978 No 46 sch 2

notified 28 December 1978 commenced 28 December 1978

Betting (Totalizator Agency) (Amendment) Ordinance 1979 No 36

notified 7 December 1979 commenced 7 December 1979

Betting (Totalizator Agency) (Amendment) Ordinance 1980 No 7

notified 20 March 1980 commenced 20 March 1980

Betting (Totalizator Agency) (Amendment) Ordinance 1981 No 12

notified 20 May 1981

commenced 29 May 1981 (s 2 and Cwlth Gaz 1981 No S103)

Australian Capital Territory Gaming and Liquor Authority Act 1981 (Cwlth) No 116

assented to 24 June 1981

commenced 1 September 1981 (s 2 and Cwlth Gaz 1981 No S179)

Ordinances Revision (Companies Amendments) Ordinance 1982 No 38 sch 4

notified 30 June 1982 commenced 1 July 1982 (s 2)

Betting (Totalizator Agency) (Amendment) Ordinance 1985 No 42 notified 13 September 1985

commenced 19 September 1985 (s 2 and Cwlth Gaz 1985 No S373)

Betting (Totalizator Agency) (Amendment) Ordinance 1986 No 46 notified 22 August 1986

commenced 1 April 1987 (s 2 and Cwlth Gaz 1987 No S57)

Betting (Totalizator Agency) (Amendment) Ordinance (No 2) 1986 No 69

notified 24 October 1986 commenced 24 October 1986

Betting (Totalizator Agency) (Amendment) Ordinance 1987 No 32 notified 30 June 1987

commenced 30 June 1987 (s 2 and Cwlth Gaz 1987 No S159)

Betting (Totalizator Agency) (Amendment) Ordinance 1989 No 1

notified 8 February 1989 commenced 8 February 1989

Self-Government (Consequential Amendments) Ordinance 1989 No 38 sch 1

notified 10 May 1989 (Cwlth Gaz 1989 No S160) s 1, s 2 commenced 10 May 1989 (s 2 (1)) sch 1 commenced 11 May 1989 (s 2 (2) and see Cwlth Gaz 1989 No S164)

Remuneration (Miscellaneous Amendments) Ordinance 1989 No 50 sch

notified 10 May 1989 (Cwlth Gaz 1989 No S160) commenced 10 May 1989

Legislation after becoming Territory enactment

Betting (Totalizator Administration) (Amendment) Act 1990 No 55 notified 21 December 1990 (Gaz 1990 No S92)

Betting (ACTTAB Limited) Act 1964

Legislation history

ss 1-3 commenced 21 December 1990 (s 2 (1)) remainder commenced 1 January 1991 (s 2 (2))

Statute Law Revision (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1992 No 23 sch 1

notified 4 June 1992 (Gaz 1992 No S71) commenced 4 June 1992

Betting (Totalizator Administration) (Amendment) Act 1993 No 36

notified 29 June 1993 (Gaz 1993 No S111)

s 1, s 2 commenced 29 June 1993 (s 2 (1))

s 7, s 8 commenced 1 August 1993 (s 2 (2) and Gaz 1993 No S133) remainder commenced 1 July 1993 (s 2 (2) and Gaz 1993 No S133)

Public Sector Management (Consequential and Transitional Provisions) Act 1994 No 38 sch 1 pt 8

notified 30 June 1994 (Gaz 1994 No S121) s 1, s 2 commenced 30 June 1994 (s 2 (1)) sch 1 pt 8 commenced 1 January 1995 (s 2 (2) and Gaz 1994 No S142)

Betting (Totalizator Administration) (Amendment) Act 1994 No 99

notified 15 December 1994 (Gaz 1994 No S280) commenced 15 December 1994 (s 2)

Annual Reports (Government Agencies) (Consequential Provisions) Act 1995 No 25 sch

notified 5 September 1995 (Gaz 1995 No S212) commenced 5 September 1995 (s 2)

Statute Law Revision Act 1995 No 46 sch

notified 18 December 1995 (Gaz 1995 No S306) amdts commenced 18 December 1995 (s 2)

Betting (Corporatisation) (Consequential Amendments) Act 1996 No 33

notified 1 July 1996 (Gaz 1996 No S130) commenced 1 July 1996 (s 2)

Racing Act 1999 No 1 sch 3

notified 26 February 1999 (Gaz 1999 No S7) s 1, s 2 commenced 26 February 1999 (s 2) sch 3 commenced 1 July 2001 (Gaz 2001 No S42)

Legislation (Consequential Amendments) Act 2001 No 44 pt 33

notified 26 July 2001 (Gaz 2001 No 30) s 1, s 2 commenced 26 July 2001 (IA s 10B) pt 33 commenced 12 September 2001 (s 2 and see Gaz 2001 No S65)

Race and Sports Bookmaking Act 2001 No 49 sch 2 pt 1

notified 12 July 2001 (Gaz 2001 No 28) s 1, s 2 commenced 12 July 2001 (IA s 10B) sch 2 pt 1 commenced 7 September 2001 (Gaz 2001 No S68)

4 Amendment history

Title

title am 1968 No 13 s 2; 1969 No 24 s 3; 1986 No 46 s 4

sub 1990 No 55 s 4 am 1993 No 36 s 4 sub 1996 No 33 sch 1

Name of Act

s 1 am 1990 No 55 s 5; 1996 No 33 sch 1

Commencement

s 2 am 1992 No 23 sch 1 om 2001 No 44 amdt 1.327

Definitions for Act

s 3 orig s 3 am 1969 No 24 s 4

om 1977 No 65 sch 2

pres s 3 (prev s 4) renum 1993 No 36 s 21 def *accounting period* ins 1978 No 30 s 3

am 1987 No 32 sch pt 1 om 1990 No 55 s 6

def *accounting year* ins 1978 No 30 s 3

sub 1987 No 32 sch pt 2 om 1990 No 55 s 6

def authority ins Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 18

sub 1987 No 32 sch pt 2 om 1990 No 55 s 6 def **bet** ins 1996 No 33 sch 1 am 2001 No 49 amdt 2.1 def **betting** am 1996 No 33 sch 1

def betting moneys of the authority ins 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

om 1990 No 55 s 6 def **board** ins 1993 No 36 s 5 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

def **Bookmakers Act** ins 1996 No 33 sch 1

def chairman ins Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 18

om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

```
def charitable club om 1979 No 36 s 3
def committee ins 1986 No 46 s 5
    om 1990 No 55 s 6
def company ins 1996 No 33 sch 1
def declared race club ins 1990 No 55 s 6
def deputy chairman ins Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 18
    om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2
def doubles bet am 1969 No 24 s 5
    om 1990 No 55 s 6
def fund ins 1986 No 46 s 5
    sub 1996 No 33 sch 1
def inspector am 1987 No 32 sch pt 2
    om 1990 No 55 s 6
def licence ins 1996 No 33 sch 1
def licensed racecourse om 1968 No 13 s 3
def member sub Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 18
    om 1990 No 55 s 6
    ins 1993 No 36 s 5
    om 1996 No 33 sch 1
def off-course totalizator betting om 1969 No 24 s 5
def race am 1968 No 13 s 3; 1972 No 13 s 2; 1990 No 55 s 6
def racecourse am 1969 No 24 s 5
def rules for sports bookmaking ins 2001 No 49 amdt 2.2
def rules of betting ins 1990 No 55 s 6
    am 1993 No 36 s 11
    sub 1996 No 33 sch 1
def rules of sports betting ins 1996 No 33 sch 1
    om 2001 No 49 amdt 2.2
def secretary ins 1986 No 46 s 5
    om 1989 No 38 sch 1
def sporting event ins 1996 No 33 sch 1
    om 2001 No 49 amdt 2.3
def sports betting event ins 1996 No 33 sch 1
    om 2001 No 49 amdt 2.4
def sports bookmaking ins 2001 No 49 amdt 2.5
def sports bookmaking event ins 2001 No 49 amdt 2.4
def TAB ins 1990 No 55 s 6
    om 1993 No 36 s 5
def the authority Act ins 1987 No 32 sch pt 2
    om 1990 No 55 s 6
def the board om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 18
def the chairman om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 18
def the council of race clubs om 1980 No 7 s 3
def the deputy chairman om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 18
def totalizator betting ins 1969 No 24 s 5
    am 1990 No 55 s 6
    sub 1996 No 33 sch 1; 2001 No 49 amdt 2.6
```

Exclusive licence

pt 2 hdg sub 1987 No 32 sch pt 2; 1990 No 55 s 7; 1993 No 36 s 6; 1996

No 33 sch 1

Establishment, functions and powers

pt 2 div 1 hdg om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

ins 1993 No 36 s 6 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Constitution and meetings

pt 2 div 2 hdg om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

ins 1993 No 36 s 6 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Chief executive officer, staff and consultants

pt 2 div 3 hdg om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

ins 1993 No 36 s 6 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

General

pt 2 div 4 hdg om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

ins 1993 No 36 s 6 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Reports

pt 2 div 5 hdg om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

Finance

pt 2AA hdg renum as pt 3 hdg

Racing development fund

pt 2A hdg renum as pt 4 hdg

Australian Capital Territory Racecourse Development Fund Advisory

Committee

pt 2A div 1 hdg ins 1986 No 46 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 8

Financial

pt 2A div 2 hdg ins 1986 No 46 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 9

Reports

pt 2A div 3 hdg ins 1986 No 46 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 15

Grant of licence

s 4 orig s 4 renum as s 3

pres s 4 (prev s 5) om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 19

ins 1990 No 55 s 7 sub 1993 No 36 s 6 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 sub 1996 No 33 sch 1

Amendment history

Commencement and duration

orig s 5 renum as s 4 s 5

pres s 5 (prev s 5A) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 sub 1996 No 33 sch 1

Commencement and duration

s 5A renum as s 5

Licence to be exclusive

s 5B renum as s 6

Transfer of licence

renum as s 7 s 5C

Powers

s 5D renum as s 8

Ministerial directions

s 5E renum as s 9

Interpretation

s 5F renum as s 10

Membership

s 5G renum as s 11

Term of office

s 5H renum as s 12

Chairperson and deputy chairperson

renum as s 13

Remuneration and allowances

s 5K renum as s 14

Leave of absence renum as s 15

Disclosure of interests

renum as s 16 s 5M

Resignation

s 5N renum as s 17

Acting members

Termination of appointment s 5Q

renum as s 18

renum as s 19

Meetings

s 5P

renum as s 20 s 5R

Procedure at meetings

renum as s 21 s 5S

Quorum

s 5T renum as s 22

Chief executive officer

s 5U renum as s 23

Chief executive officer—leave of absence

s 5V renum as s 24

Chief executive officer—resignation s 5W renum as s 25

Chief executive officer—termination of appointment

s 5X renum as s 26

Acting chief executive officer s 5Y renum as s 27

Staff

s 5Z renum as s 28

Consultants

s 5ZA renum as s 29

Delegation

s 5ZB renum as s 30

Application of Audit Act

s 5ZC renum as s 31

Licence to be exclusive

s 6 orig s 6 renum as s 32

pres s 6 (prev s 5B) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 sub 1996 No 33 sch 1

Transfer of licence

s 7 orig s 7 renum as s 33

pres s 7 (prev s 5C) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 sub 1996 No 33 sch 1

Powers

s 8 orig s 8 renum as s 34

pres s 8 (prev s 5D) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Ministerial directions

s 9 orig s 9 renum as s 35

pres s 9 (prev s 5E) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 am 1995 No 25 sch om 1996 No 33 sch 1

4 Amendment history

Interpretation

s 10 orig s 10 renum as s 36

pres s 10 (prev s 5F) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Membership

s 11 orig s 11 renum as s 37

pres s 11 (prev s 5G) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Term of office

s 12 orig s 12 renum as s 38

pres s 12 (prev s 5H) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Chairperson and deputy chairperson

s 13 orig s 13 renum as s 39

pres s 13 (prev s 5J) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Remuneration and allowances

s 14 orig s 14 am 1980 No 7 s 4

om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 19

pres s 14 (prev s 5K) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Leave of absence

s 15 orig s 15 om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 19

pres s 15 (prev s 5L) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Disclosure of interests

s 16 orig s 16 om 1987 No 32

pres s 16 (prev s 5M) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Resignation

s 17 orig s 17 om 1987 No 32

pres s 17 (prev s 5N) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Acting members

s 18 orig s 18 sub 1969 No 24 s 6; 1980 No 7 s 5

om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

pres s 18 (prev s 5P) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Exclusive right of the board to conduct totalizator betting facilities

s 18A ins 1969 No 24 s 6

am 1987 No 32 s 4 om 1990 No 55 s 7

Termination of appointment

s 19 orig s 19 om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

pres s 19 (prev s 5Q) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Meetings

s 20 orig s 20 am 1968 No 13 s 4; 1969 No 24 s 7; 1972 No 13 s 3;

1987 No 32 sch pt 1 and pt 2

om 1990 No 55 s 7

pres s 20 (prev s 5R) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Procedure at meetings

s 21 orig s 21 am 1969 No 24 s 8; 1980 No 7 s 6; 1987 No 32 s 5,

sch pt 1 and sch pt 2

om 1990 No 55 s 7

pres s 21 (prev s 5S) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Premises on racecourses

s 21A ins 1969 No 24 s 9

am 1987 No 32 sch pt 1 and pt 2

om 1990 No 55 s 7

Quorum

s 22 orig s 22 am 1987 No 32 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 7

pres s 22 (prev s 5T) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Chief executive officer

s 23 orig s 23 am 1968 No 13 s 5; 1969 No 24 s 10; 1972 No 13 s 4;

1978 No 30 s 4; 1987 No 32 s 7, sch pt 1 and sch pt 2

om 1990 No 55 s 7

pres s 23 (prev s 5U) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Chief executive officer—leave of absence

s 24 orig s 24 am 1968 No 13 s 6

sub 1969 No 24 s 11

Betting (ACTTAB Limited) Act 1964

4 Amendment history

am 1987 No 32 sch pt 1 om 1990 No 55 s 7

pres s 24 (prev s 5V) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Chief executive officer—resignation

s 25 orig s 25 om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

pres s 25 (prev s 5W) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Chief executive officer—termination of appointment

s 26 orig s 26 sub 1969 No 24 s 12

am 1976 No 66 s 3 om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

pres s 26 (prev s 5X) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Acting chief executive officer

s 27 orig s 27 om 1969 No 24 s 12

ins 1978 No 30 s 5

am 1987 No 32 s 8 and sch pt 1

om 1990 No 55 s 7

pres s 27 (prev s 5Y) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Staff

s 28 orig s 28 am 1978 No 30 s 6

sub 1979 No 36 s 4 om 1981 No 12 s 4 ins 1986 No 69 s 3

am 1987 No 32 sch pt 1; 1989 No 1 s 3; 1989 No 38 sch 1

om 1990 No 55 s 7

pres s 28 (prev s 5Z) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 sub 1994 No 38 sch 1 pt 8 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Payments to prescribed bodies etc

s 28A ins 1979 No 36 s 4

om 1981 No 12 s 4 ins 1989 No 1 s 4 om 1990 No 55 s 7

Consultants

s 29 orig s 29 sub 1978 No 30 s 7

am 1981 No 12 s 5; 1985 No 42 s 3; 1987 No 32 s 9 and sch

pt 1

om 1990 No 55 s 7

pres s 29 (prev s 5ZA) ins 1993 No 36 s 6 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 am 1994 No 38 sch 1 pt 8 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Delegation s 30

orig s 30 am 1972 No 13 s 5; 1978 No 30 s 8; 1981 No 12 s 6;

1986 No 69 s 4 sub 1987 No 32 s 10 om 1990 No 55 s 7

pres s 30 (prev s 5ZB) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Reserve account

s 30A ins 1978 No 30 s 9

am 1981 No 12 s 7; 1986 No 69 s 5

om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

Application of Audit Act

s 31 orig s 31 om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

pres s 31 (prev s 5ZC) ins 1993 No 36 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 am 1995 No 25 sch om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Finance

pt 3 hdg orig pt 3 hdg renum as pt 5 hdg

(prev pt 2AA hdg) ins 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

sub 1990 No 55 s 7 renum 1993 No 36 s 21

Payments to Territory

s 32 orig s 32 om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

pres s 32 (prev s 6) om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 19

ins 1990 No 55 s 7 am 1993 No 36 s 7 and 11 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 am 1994 No 99 s 4 sub 1996 No 33 sch 1

am 2001 No 44 amdt 1.328, amdt 1.329; LA (see 2001 No 44

amdt 1.329); 2001 No 49 amdt 2.7

Audit

s 33 orig s 33 am 1982 No 38 sch 4

om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

pres s 33 (prev s 7) am 1973 No 35 s 3

om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 19

ins 1990 No 55 s 7 am 1993 No 36 s 11 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

4 Amendment history

Payments by Minister to fund

s 34 orig s 34 am 1981 No 12 s 8

om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

pres s 34 (prev s 8) om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 19

ins 1990 No 55 s 7

am 1993 No 36 s 8 and s 11 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 am 1994 No 99 s 5 sub 1996 No 33 sch 1

Annual report

s 35 orig s 35 om 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

pres s 35 (prev s 9) om 1973 No 35 s 4

sub 1990 No 55 s 7 am 1993 No 36 s 11 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Interpretation

s 35A renum as s 40

Establishment of committee

s 35B ins 1986 No 46 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 8

Functions of committee

s 35C ins 1986 No 46 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 8

Powers of committee

s 35D ins 1986 No 46 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 8

Membership of committee

s 35E ins 1986 No 46 s 6

am 1987 No 32 sch pt 2; 1989 No 38 sch 1

om 1990 No 55 s 8

Tenure of office

s 35F ins 1986 No 46 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 8

Senior member of committee

s 35G ins 1986 No 46 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 8

Acting appointments

s 35H ins 1986 No 46 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 8

Fees and allowances

s 35J ins 1986 No 46 s 6

sub 1989 No 50 sch om 1990 No 55 s 8

Resignation s 35K ins 1986 No 46 s 6 om 1990 No 55 s 8

Termination of appointment

ins 1986 No 46 s 6 s 35L

am 1987 No 32 sch pt 2; 1989 No 38 sch 1

om 1990 No 55 s 8

Disclosure of interests

s 35M ins 1986 No 46 s 6 om 1990 No 55 s 8

Meetings of committee

ins 1986 No 46 s 6 s 35N om 1990 No 55 s 8

Racing development fund s 35P renum as s 41

Payments to fund

s 35Q renum as s 42

Application of fund money renum as s 43

Purposes of prescribed payments

s 35S renum as s 44

Consultation with company and declared race clubs

renum as s 45 s 35SA

Terms applicable to prescribed payments

renum as s 46 s 35T

Repayment of prescribed payments

s 35U renum as s 47

Investment of money of fund

s 35V renum as s 48

Accounting records

s 35W renum as s 49

Audit

s 35X renum as s 50

Furnishing of information

s 35Y ins 1986 No 46 s 6 om 1990 No 55 s 15

Annual report

ins 1986 No 46 s 6 s 35Z

om 1990 No 55 s 15

4 Amendment history

Declared race clubs

s 36 orig s 36 renum as s 51

(prev s 10) am 1966 No 19 sch 1 om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 19

ins 1990 No 55 s 7 renum 1993 No 36 s 21

am 2001 No 44 amdt 1.330, amdt 1.331

Acceptance of bets

s 37 orig s 37 renum as s 52

(prev s 11) om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 19

ins 1990 No 55 s 7 renum 1993 No 36 s 21

am 1994 No 99 s 6; 1996 No 33 sch 1

om 2001 No 44 amdt 1.332

Placing of bets

s 37A ins 1969 No 24 s 16

am 1987 No 32 sch pt 1 and pt 2

om 1990 No 55 s 17

Restrictions on contracts

s 38 orig s 38 am 1966 No 19 sch 1; 1980 No 7 s 7; 1987 No 32

s 11, sch pt 1 and sch pt 2

om 1990 No 55 s 17

pres s 38 (prev s 12) om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 19

ins 1993 No 36 s 9 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Application of surplus funds

s 39 orig s 39 am 1966 No 19 sch 1; 1969 No 24 s 17; 1987 No 32

sch pt 1 and pt 2 om 1990 No 55 s 17

pres s 39 (prev s 13) om Cwlth Act 1981 No 116 s 19

ins 1990 No 55 s 9 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Racing development fund

pt 4 hdg orig pt 4 hdg renum as pt 6 hdg

(prev pt 2A hdg) ins 1986 No 46 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 am 1996 No 33 sch 1

Australian Capital Territory Racecourse Development Fund Advisory

Committee

pt 2A div 1 hdg ins 1986 No 46 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 8

Financial

pt 2A div 2 hdg ins 1986 No 46 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 9

Reports

pt 2A div 3 hdg ins 1986 No 46 s 6

om 1990 No 55 s 15

Meaning of prescribed payment in pt 4

s 40 orig s 40 renum as s 53

(prev s 35A) ins 1986 No 46 s 6

sub 1990 No 55 s 8 renum 1993 No 36 s 21

Racing development fund

s 41 orig s 41 am 1966 No 19 sch 1; 1968 No 13 s 8

sub 1969 No 24 s 18

am 1987 No 32 sch pt 1 and pt 2

om 1990 No 55 s 19

pres s 41 (prev s 35P) ins 1986 No 46 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 sub 1996 No 33 sch 1

Provisions applicable if no winning bets

s 41A ins 1969 No 24 s 18

am 1987 No 32 s 13 and sch pt 1

om 1990 No 55 s 19

Offences in relation to payment of winning bets and refunds

s 41B ins 1969 No 24 s 18

am 1987 No 32 sch pt 2 om 1990 No 55 s 19

Payments to fund

s 42 hdg (prev s 35Q hdg) sub 1996 No 33 notes

s 42 orig s 42 am 1966 No 19 sch 1

sub 1969 No 24 s 18

am 1972 No 13 s 6; 1978 No 30 s 10

sub 1987 No 32 s 14 om 1990 No 55 s 19

pres s 42 (prev s 35Q) ins 1986 No 46 s 6

am 1987 No 32 sch pt 1; 1990 No 55 s 10; 1993 No 36 s 11

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 am 1996 No 33 sch 1

Application of fund money

s 43 orig s 43 am 1966 No 19 sch 1; 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

om 1990 No 55 s 19

pres s 43 (prev s 35R) ins 1986 No 46 s 6

am 1990 No 55 s 11 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 sub 1996 No 33 sch 1

Purposes of prescribed payments

s 44 hdg (prev s 35S hdg) sub 1996 No 33 notes

Betting (ACTTAB Limited) Act 1964

4 Amendment history

s 44 orig s 44 am 1968 No 13 s 9; 1972 No 13 s 7; 1980 No 7 s 8;

1987 No 32 sch pt 1 om 1990 No 55 s 19

pres s 44 (prev s 35S) ins 1986 No 46 s 6 am 1990 No 55 s 12; 1993 No 36 s 11

renum 1993 No 36 s 21

am 1996 No 33 sch 1; 1999 No 1 sch 3

Consultation with company and declared race clubs

s 45 hdg (prev s 35SA hdg) am 1993 No 36 notes

s 45 orig s 45 am 1966 No 19 sch 1; 1987 No 32 sch pt 2

om 1990 No 55 s 19

pres s 45 (prev s 35SA) ins 1990 No 55 s 13

am 1993 No 36 s 11 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 am 1996 No 33 sch 1

Terms applicable to prescribed payments

s 46 hdg (prev s 35T hdg) am 1996 No 33 notes

s 46 orig s 46 renum as s 54 (prev s 35T) ins 1986 No 46 s 6

am 1990 No 55 s 14 renum 1993 No 36 s 21

Repayment of prescribed payments

s 47 hdg (prev s 34U hdg) sub 1996 No 33 notes

s 47 orig s 47 renum as s 55

(prev s 35U) ins 1986 No 46 s 6 renum 1993 No 36 s 21

Repayment of prescribed payments

s 48 orig s 48 renum as s 56

(prev s 35V) ins 1986 No 46 s 6 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Repayment of prescribed payments

s 49 orig s 49 renum as s 57

(prev s 35W) ins 1986 No 46 s 6 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Repayment of prescribed payments

s 50 (prev s 35X) ins 1986 No 46 s 6

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 am 1995 No 46 sch om 1996 No 33 sch 1

Betting

pt 5 hdg (prev pt 3 hdg) am 1969 No 24 s 13

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 am 1996 No 33 sch 1 Permitted betting activities

s 51 (prev s 36) am 1968 No 13 s 7; 1969 No 24 s 14; 1987 No 32;

1990 No 55 s 16; 1993 No 36 s 11

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 sub 1996 No 33 sch 1

am 2001 No 49 amdts 2.8-2.13

Bets on credit

s 52

(prev s 37) am 1966 No 19 sch 1; 1969 No 24 s 15; 1987 No 32

sch pt 1 and pt 2 sub 1990 No 55 s 17 am 1993 No 36 s 11 renum 1993 No 36 s 21 sub 1996 No 33 sch 1

Betting by children

s 53 hdg (prev s 40 hdg) sub 1996 No 33 notes

s 53 (prev s 40) am 1996 No 19; 1974 No 47 sch 1; 1987 No 32

s 12, sch pt 1 and sch pt 2; 1990 No 55 s 18; 1993 No 36

s 11

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 am 1996 No 33 sch 1

Availability of Act etc for inspection

s 54 hdg (prev s 46 hdg) sub 1996 No 33 notes

s 54 (prev s 46) am 1969 No 24 s 19; 1978 No 46 sch 2; 1987 No 32

s 15, sch pt 1 and sch pt 2 sub 1990 No 55 s 19 am 1993 No 36 s 11 renum 1993 No 36 s 21

am 1996 No 33 sch 1; 2001 No 49 amdt 2.14

Miscellaneous

pt 6 hdg (prev pt 4 hdg) ins 1993 No 36 s 10

renum 1993 No 36 s 21

Rules of betting

s 55 (prev s 47) ins 1993 No 36 s 10

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 sub 1996 No 33 sch 1 am 2001 No 44 amdt 1.333

Regulation-making power

s 56 (prev s 48) ins 1993 No 36 s 10

renum 1993 No 36 s 21 sub 1995 No 25 sch om 1996 No 33 sch 1 ins 2001 No 44 amdt 1.334

Regulations

s 57 (prev s 49) ins 1993 No 36 s 10

renum 1993 No 36 s 21

om 2001 No 44 amdt 1.334

5 Earlier republications

Some earlier republications were not numbered. The number in column 1 refers to the publication order.

Since 12 September 2001 every authorised republication has been published in electronic pdf format on the ACT legislation register. A selection of authorised republications have also been published in printed format. These republications are marked with an asterisk (*) in column 1. Except for the footer, electronic and printed versions of an authorised republication are identical.

Republication No	Amendments to	Republication date
1	Act 1990 No 55	28 February 1991
2	Act 1993 No 36	1 August 1993
3	Act 1994 No 99	31 January 1995
4	Act 1995 No 46	1 July 1996
5	Act 1996 No 33	30 November 1996

6 Renumbered provisions

as made by the Betting (Totalizator Administration) (Amendment) 1993 No 36

old number	new number	old number	new number	old number	new number
section	section	section	section	section	section
4	3	5V	24	35P	41
5	4	5W	25	35Q	42
5A	5	5X	26	35R	43
5B	6	5Y	27	35S	44
5C	7	5Z	28	35SA	45
5D	8	5ZA	29	35T	46
5E	9	5ZB	30	35U	47
5F	10	5ZC	31	35V	48
5G	11	pt 2AA	pt 3	35W	49
5H	12	section	section	35X	50
5J	13	6	32	pt 3	pt 5
5K	14	7	33	section	section
5L	15	8	34	36	51
5M	16	9	35	37	52
5N	17	10	36	40	53
5P	18	11	37	46	54
5Q	19	12	38	pt 4	pt 6
5R	20	13	39	section	section
5S	21	pt 2A	pt 4	47	55
5T	22	section	section	48	56
5U	23	35A	40	49	57

Authorised by the ACT Parliamentary Counsel—also accessible at www.legislation.act.gov.au

© Australian Capital Territory 2002